
CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

FEBRUARY 2, 2015 

6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

2.  ROLL CALL  

      INVOCATION /  Pastor Bryant Evans with the Eastern Shore Church of Christ 

 

     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES: Council Meeting Minutes / January 20, 2015 

 

PRESENTATION:  Daphne Art Center / Mrs. Annie Root 

 

                

4. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry  

 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis  

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell      

Review minutes / January 20
th

  

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott   

Review minutes / January 20
th

  

a.)   Ordinance 2015-10 / Authorize Mayor to enter into contracts not exceeding $15,000 / 

   Unanimous recommendation 

       

b.)   Amending Ordinance 2014-43 / Council Rules of Procedure / Appointing council members  

  Committees / Unanimous recommendation 

 

c.)   Reappoint Municipal Judge, Michael Hoyt / Term 2015-2017 

 

d.)   Reappoint City Prosecutor, James Scroggins / Term February 2015-February 2016 

 

    

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones   

Review Staff Report / January 8
th

 meeting 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway   

 

C. Industrial Development Board – Davis     

Review minutes / January 26
th

  

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 1



COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                          FEBRUARY 2, 2015  PAGE   2 
 

D. Library Board - Lake  

 

E. Planning Commission – Scott 

a.) Review minutes / December 18
th

  

 

            b.) Review Staff Report / January 22
nd

 meeting 

   

            c.)  MOTION:  Set a Public Hearing date for March 16, 2015 and approve advertising to consider 

                  an Ordinance amending the Land Use and Development Ordinance 2011-54: 

a.)  Planned Unit Development / New Zoning District 

b.)  Recommendation:   Unanimous Favorable 

 

F. Recreation Board – LeJeune 

 

G. Utility Board – Fry 

 

6. Mayor’s Report 

 

7. City Attorney’s Report 

 

8. Department Heads Comments 

 

9. City Clerk’s Report 

    a.)   ABC License / El Mexicano of Daphne Restaurant / 020-Restaurant Retail Liquor 

     

  

10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 

 

11. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

RESOLUTIONS: 

 

NO RESOLUTIONS TO CONSIDER 

 

 

ORDINANCES:  

 

        2
nd

  READ   

 

a.) Ordinance 2015-03. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Pre-Zone Property Located on the South Side of U.S.  

                                                                               Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard / George Kalasountas 

 

b.) Ordinance 2015-04. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Annex Property Contiguous to the Corporate Limits of the City       

                                                                              of Daphne / Property Located on the South Side of U.S.  

                                                                              Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard / George Kalasountas 

 

c.) Ordinance 2015-05. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Grant Management for the Tiawasee Creek Coastal Impact  

                                                                              Assistance Program (CIAP) and National Fish and Wildlife  

                                                                              Foundation (NFWF) Grant Tiawasee Creek Restoration 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 2



COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                          FEBRUARY 2, 2015  PAGE   3 
 

 

 

d.) Ordinance 2015-06. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriating Funds for Reconstruction of Flumes, Ditches &  

                                                                                Inlets along County Road 13 

 

e.)  Ordinance 2015-07. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriating Funds:   Piedmont Circle Drainage Repairs 

 

f.)  Ordinance 2015-08. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriating Funds:  Rolling Hills Drive (South) Grade,  

                                                                                Drain, Base & Pave (Project #04-2014-RE06) 

 

g.)  Ordinance 2015-09. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Transition the Position of Treasurer to the Finance Director  

 

h.)  Ordinance 2015-10. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Authorizing the Mayor to Enter Into Certain Contracts 

 

i.)   Ordinance 2015-11. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Amending Ordinance 2014-43 / Council Rules of Procedure 

 

 

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

 

13.  ADJOURN 

 

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT CONAWAY  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS      PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 4



JANUARY 20, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

                                                                                          

1.    CALL TO ORDER: 
There being a quorum present Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

Vickie Hinman, HR Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; James White, Fire 

Chief; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; 

Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant/Treasurer; Ashley Campbell, Environmental 

Programs Manager; Larry Cooke, BZA; Willie Robison, BZA; Kevin Boucher, Adams & Reese;  

 

Absent: Richard Merchant, Building Official; Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge.  

 

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Pastor George Collins with the Mt. Air Missionary Baptist Church gave the invocation. 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:    

January 5, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes 
The January 5, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes were approved as written.  

 

January 12, 2015 Council Work Session Minutes 
The January 12, 2015 Council Work Session Minutes were approved as written. 

 

 

PROCLALMATION:   Daphne High School Graduation Rate 

Mayor Haygood read and presented the proclamation to Dr. Foster, principal for Daphne High School and David 

Tarwater, Baldwin County Board of Education. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 

A. Pre-Zoning:  George Kalasountas 

Property Located:  On the south side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard 

Present Zoning:  RSF-1, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County District 15 

Requested Zoning:  B-2, General Business / R-7(T), Townhouse / R-1, Low Density Single Family 

Residential District, City of Daphne 

Recommendation:  Three motions were made and failed which resulted in an unfavorable 

recommendation  

 

 

Mrs. Adrienne Jones, Planning Director, gave a presentation on the pre-zoning request mentioning that her 

recommendation to the Planning Commission and to Council, as well, is to pre-zone each parcel as requested.  The 

B-2 request is consistent with the businesses across the street, the R-7 is a good transition between the businesses 

along Highway 90, and R-1 is consistent with the residential in the back.  There were three motions made and none 

received a majority vote so there is really no recommendation from the Planning Commission.   

 

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 5



JANUARY 20, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

Mr. Daryl Russell with McCrory & Williams, Inc., the engineer for the project, gave a presentation on the project.  

He said that they consulted the City of Daphne Comprehensive Plan, and compared what the owner was proposing 

to do with these lots to the Comprehensive Plan, and they feel that what is being proposed is in line with that plan as 

far as commercial development on Highway 90, high density behind that transitioning into a lower density 

residential development.  This provides a nice transition from commercial development, which already exists along 

Highway 90, to a high density residential development and then transition into lower density residential properties. 

 

Council President Conaway opened the Public Hearing at 6:49. 

 

Mr. Norman McAllister – 9595 Malbis Lane – spoke in opposition to the pre-zoning request. 

 

Mr.  John Lawler – Attorney representing Malbis Lane Property Owners Association – spoke regarding 

speculative zoning, and opposes the pre-zoning request. 

 

Ms. Dona Glover – 9717 Malbis Lane – spoke in opposition to the pre-zoning request. Is opposed to giving the 

owner a blank check to build whatever he wants to as the owner has not submitted anything on paper. 

 

Mr. Kevin Spriggs – Owner of Malbis Shell – President of Historic Malbis Subdivision -  spoke against pre-

zoning request with no plans submitted. 

 

Mr. George Collins – Pastor for Mt. Air Missionary Baptist Church – Highway 90 - spoke against the pre-zoning 

request. His is concerned about the traffic, and he is also concerned about what will be built around the church 

which is the oldest church in the area. 

 

Ms. Gertrude Malbis – 9655 Malbis Lane –spoke regarding traffic problems, and is against the pre-zoning request. 

 

Ms. Betty Godwin – 9790 Malbis Lane – spoke against the pre-zoning request.  She is for residential not multi-

family. 

 

Ms. Jennifer Miller 10358 – 10358 Tampary Street – spoke in opposition to the pre-zoning request.  Her concerns 

were added traffic problems and the historic preservation of the area.  Consideration should be given to how to 

develop around historic areas. 

 

Mr. Demitrios Matthews – 29289 State Highway 181 – is concerned about the future of the City of Daphne and 

how this will affect everyone, and what it will look like 10-20-50 years down the line.  He said this is important to 

preserve prime areas, historic districts and green space, and is opposed to the pre-zoning request. 

 

Mr. Sculley – Attorney representing the property owner, Mr. Kalasountass – presented a power point presentation 

explaining the genesis of the project. He feels the pre-zoning request is in line with current zoning for the area and 

in line with the City of Daphne Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Council President Conaway closed the Public Hearing at 7:20 p.m. 

 

B. Annexation:  George Kalasountas 

            Property Located: On the south side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard 

            Recommendation:  Favorable 

 

Mrs. Adrienne Jones gave the presentation on the annexation request. 

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 6



JANUARY 20, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

Council President Conaway opened the Public Hearing at 7:29 p.m. 

 

Mr. Kevin Spriggs – Owner of Malbis Shell – President of Historic Malbis Subdivision -  spoke in favor of the 

annexation. 

 

Mr. George Kalasountas – 9563 Malbis Lane – spoke in favor of the annexation. 

 

Mr. Norman McAllister – 9595 Malbis Lane – spoke in opposition to the annexation. 

 

Mrs. Felicia McAllister - 9595 Malbis Lane – spoke against the annexation. 

 

Council President Conaway closed the Public Hearing at 7:35 p.m. 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The minutes for the January 12
th
 meeting are in the packet. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to continue the City’s insurance coverage with John A. Robertson Insurance 

Agency, Inc. for a total annual renewal cost of $554,575 and to enter a three (3) year contract in order to 

receive a 2.5 percent discount.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to reject the bid for 2015-B-Renovations to Fire Station #3 and to go back out 

to bid with alternates to include an exterior similar to Fire Station #2.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 
Treasurers Report / December 31,  2014 

 

 Total Unrestricted Funds / $9,613,210 

 Total City Funds / $18,294,309 

 

Sales and Use Tax Collections / December 2014  

 

 $1,092,961.96 was collected in December 2014 

 YTD Variance over Budget / $23,797.12 + 2.2% 

 Perchent change from last year’s collections + 2.8% 

 

 

 

 

 

Lodging Tax Collections / December 2014 

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 7



JANUARY 20, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 $77,289.64 was collected in December 2014 

 Percentage change from last year’s collections / + 43.2% 

 Balance reserved for Recreation purchases is $345,934.10 

 Unreserved balance for Bayfront associated expenditures / $1,971,758.89 

 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE - Davis 

The January 5
th
 minutes are in the packet.  The next meeting will be the first Monday of February. 

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The committee met this afternoon and the minutes will be in the next packet. The next meeting will be the third Monday 

of February. 

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The committee met this afternoon and the minutes will be in the next packet.  

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The January 5
th
 minutes are in the packet, and the next meeting will be February 2

nd
.  Councilman LeJeune reminded 

everyone about the meeting date change. 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The October 2
nd

 minutes are in the packet.  There will not be a meeting in February. 
 
B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The next meeting will be January 28
th
 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The next meeting will be January 26
th
 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

D.   Library Board – Lake 

The minutes for the last meeting will be in the next packet.  The next meeting will be February 13
th
 at 4:00 p.m. at the 

Library. 

 

     E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The next meeting will be January 22
nd

 at 5:00 p.m.   

     

 F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

There will be a Special Called Recreation Board meeting on January 28
th
 at 6:30 p.m.   Councilman LeJeune asked the 

City Clerk to post the announcement.  The written proposals will be coming in on the 23
rd

, and will be presented at the 

February 9
th
 work session. 

 

    G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The next meeting will be the first Wednesday in February which is February 4
th
 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

 A.  Mayor’s Report 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 8



JANUARY 20, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

Mayor Haygood reported that the Bench Trial for Tiawasee vs City of Daphne Planning Commission was held January 8
th
 

and has been completed.  Post-trial briefs have been submitted and are awaiting a decision. 

 
B.  City Attorney’s Report 

Mr. Ross added to the Mayor’s comments saying Friday Judge Bishop proposed orders from both the plaintiff (Tiawasee 

Property Owners Association) and the defendant (City of Daphne Planning Commission), and the city’s was submitted 

today, and Mr. Stankowski sent his in late last week on Friday.  They could receive an order this week by e-mail and he 

will send it on to council when he does receive it. 

 

There are a couple of pending litigation cases that he needs to update council on, and Mrs. Conaway will advise him of an 

appropriate time for an Executive Session.   

 

MOTION: There is a matter that relates to Ordinance 2015-09, and that is the resignation of the Treasurer effective upon 

the commencement of a Finance Director, and he asked council to consider suspending the rules to consider Ordinance 

2015-09. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to accept the resignation of Suzanne Henson as Treasurer effective upon the start 

date of the Finance Director.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

Councilman Scott pointed out that Mrs. Henson has done an admirable job.  The city was without a Treasurer because of 

some unusual circumstances, and in order to avail the city of some $800,000 in savings by refinancing some bonds Mrs. 

Henson agreed to serve.  She is a valued city employee, and they appreciate her efforts and willingness to work with them 

on this matter. 

 

Councilman Lake said that Mrs. Henson has done a fantastic job, and he complimented her for her professionalism and 

how she has handled the position.  He knows the next person will do a good job with Mrs. Henson’s guidance.  She is an 

awesome individual. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

MOTION:  Addendum to the video services agreement between Bellsouth Telecommunication DBA AT&T Alabama 

and the City of Daphne. 

 

Mr. Ross said there was some discussion at the last meeting about a five year term with an automatic renewal.  After 

thinking about it, and how the renewal would go into effect if the city had to trigger it or AT&T had to trigger it, and what 

those times would be, and he has presented to council one that would automatically terminate on December 31, 2019.  

Whatever the market is the council at that time can simply renew it or can change it to be in parody with other franchise 

agreements.  He just could not get comfortable with how that mechanics ought to work without coming back to council 

and discussing it. So he took the liberty to end it on December 31, 2019.  Nothing will prevent a subsequent council at that 

time from extending it or changing it as market conditions etc. dictate.  They have encompassed everything that has been 

requested and the AT&T counsel has approved the agreement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 9



JANUARY 20, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to approve an addendum to the video services agreement between Bellsouth 

Telecommunication DBA AT&T Alabama and the City of Daphne: 

 

ADDENDUM TO VIDEO SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 WHEREAS, City of Daphne and AT&T Alabama entered into an agreement styled Agreement on April 9, 

2009 (“Agreement”), regarding the provision by AT&T Alabama of its integrated Internet Protocol (“IP”) enabled 

broadband platform of voice, data and video services (IP Network”), the video component of which is a switched, 

two-way, point-to-point and interactive service (“IP Video Service”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, paragraph 1 set for the term of the “Agreement” to expire effective May 1, 2014, but allows 

for extending the “Agreement” upon written mutual agreement of the parties; and 

 

 WHEREAS, City of Daphne and AT&T Alabama desire to extend the terms of the “Agreement” for an 

additional period effective May 1, 2014 and running until December 31, 2019 and agree that there is sufficient 

mutual consideration for renewing and extending the term of the “Agreement”. 

 

AGREEMENTS 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE,  in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and in the original 

“Agreement”, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, the City of Daphne and AT& T Alabama agree as follows: 

 

1. Paragraph 1 of the “Agreement” is to be amended by changing the date of termination from December 31, 

2013 to December 31, 2019.  Paragraph 1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

“Term.  Except as described in paragraph 1 (a) below, the term of this Agreement shall be from the Effective Date 

of the Agreement through December 31, 2019.  The term may be extended upon mutual agreement of the parties in 

writing.” 

 

2. The following paragraph 23 is added to the Agreement: 

 

“23.  AT&T, at the City’s request will, collectively with all other video Providers, provide the City free of charge 

one (1) basic video installation and monthly service to each public school, municipal governmental building, fire 

building, police building and library building that is passed by AT&T’s system, and where such service is 

available.  No more than one (1) provider shall be required provide the service required by this Section 23 to any 

given location.  The City will confer with all providers and determine the assignments in a reasonable manner.  

AT&T shall not seek to offset recurring costs associated with the requirements of this Section against the fees due 

under Section 2 of this Agreement, nor shall AT&T impose such costs on the schools or institutions receiving such 

free installation and service.  AT&T may offset any non-recurring installation and non-recurring repair of service 

charges provided pursuant to this Section against any fees due under Section 2 of this Agreement.  Such charges 

shall not exceed the installation charge applicable to residential customers, or at such time as a business product is 

available to business customers.  Additional video programming, Internet access, voice over IP (VoIP) or other 

options or services offered by AT&T as part of the U-Verse offering beyond the scope of services provided in the 

Section may be separately requested and ordered by the City, subject to their availability at any particular 

location.  Such additional services requested by the City shall be at the sole cost of the City and payable pursuant 

to the customary billing and payment terms consistent with available AT&T U-Verse offerings to business 

subscribers. 

 

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 10



JANUARY 20, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

 

3. Unless amended by the terms of this Addendum, all other terms and conditions of the “Agreement” shall 

remain unchanged and in full force and effect throughout the extended term.  In the event the terms and 

conditions of the  “Agreement” conflict with the terms of this Addendum this Addendum shall be deemed to 

supersede and override the terms of the “Agreement”. 

 

4. This Addendum incorporated and include all prior and contemporaneous negotiations, correspondence, 

conversations, agreements and understanding between the parties concerning the subject matter hereof.  

Otherwise, no deviation from the terms hereof shall be predicated upon any prior or contemporaneous 

representations, agreements or understandings whether oral or written.   

 

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

C.   Department Head Comments 

 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – thanked everyone from the different departments for helping in the traffic 

fatality on Highway 90 at Starbucks. 

 

Vickie Hinman – HR Director – reported that applications are being taken for Deputy Public Works Director 

which ends January 27
th

.  

 

Adrienne Jones – Planning Director – reported that she has asked the Alabama Planning Institute to come and 

host classes for the certification and recertification of Planning and Zoning officials here at City Hall.  Classes 

will be Friday, January 30
th

 from 6:00 p.m. – 9:30 p.m. and Saturday 8:30 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. 

 

Suzanne Henson – Senior Accountant/Treasurer – said that she appreciates the confidence council put in her 

to carry out the duties of Treasurer during this interim period. 

 

C. City Clerk’s Report  
 

1. Shadow Barons / Mardi Gras / February 14, 2015 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to approve the event permit for the Shadow Barons  

Mardi Gras parade to be held February 14, 2015.   Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

     
 

 

 

 

 

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 11



JANUARY 20, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e8
 

 

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Rod Drummond – Ridgewood Avenue – said he like the new format for the agenda, because it was easier to read. 

 

Council President Conaway said that Resolution 2015-06 has been pulled from the agenda by the City Attorney, 

because the covenants were not ready. 

 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         

A. Resolution 2015-03. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ADEM 319 Tiawasee Creek Constructed Wetlands Grant Application 

 

B. Resolution 2015-04. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Support of the Combination of the City’s Coastal Impact Assistance 

                                                                       Program (CIAP) Grant Funds with the Mobile Bay National Estuary   

                                                                       Programs (MBNEP) National Fish And Wildlife Foundation (NFWF)  

                                                                      Grant Funds to Restore an Impaired Segment of Tiawasee Creek 

 

C. Resolution 2015-05. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Adopting Purchasing Policies for the Tiawasee Creek Restoration  

                                                                      Coastal Impact Assistance Coastal Impact Assistance Program’s  

                                                                      (CIAP)  & National Fish and Wildlife Foundation (NFWF) 

 

D. Resolution 2015-06. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Land Donation from Provision Investments LLC – Tiawasee Creek 

 

E. Resolution 2015-07. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Bid Award:  2015-C-Reconstruction of Flumes, Ditches & Inlets  

                                                                     Along CR13 / Ammons & Blackmon Construction LLC 

 

F. Resolution 2015-08. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Bid Award:  2015-D-RE7-PIEDMONT CIRCLE / Sunset Contracting,  

                                                                     Inc. 

 

G. Resolution 2015-09. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Bid Award:  2015-F-Rolling Hills Drive (South) Grade, Drain, Base &  

                                                                    Pave Project 

 

H. Resolution 2015-10. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Authorizing Issuance of Credit Card for the Public Works Deputy 

Director 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2015-03, 2015-04, 2015-05, 2015-

07, 2015-08, 2015-09 and 2015-10.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

  

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolutions 2015-03, 2015-04 and 2015-05.  Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 12



JANUARY 20, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e9
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-07, 2015-08 and 2015-09.  Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-10.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 

2
ND

 READ 
a.)  Ordinance 2015-02. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Amending Ordinance 2004-52 the City of Daphne’s Job Classification  

                                                                             Schedule  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Ordinance 2015-02.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2015-02 with the deletion of:  City Administrator, 

Management/Business Analyst and Communications Manager.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

After discussion Councilman Lake withdrew his motion and Councilman Rudicell withdrew his second. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to refer Ordinance 2015-02 to the Finance Committee agenda for next 

month to be properly discussed and everybody’s questions answered.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to amend Mr. Fry’s motion to exclude the Deputy Public Works 

Director at  a Grade 29/E which has been advertised with a closing date of January 27
th

 and send the rest 

of the ordinance to the February Finance Committee to be discussed.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

AYE    Rudicell, Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Conaway   NAY   Davis 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

VOTE ON ORIGINAL MOTION AS AMENDED 

 

AYE    Rudicell, Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Conaway   NAY    Davis 

 

 

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 13



JANUARY 20, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
0

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2015-02 as amended.  Seconded by Councilman 

Lake. 

 

AYE    Rudicell, Lake, Fry, Scott, LeJeune, Conaway   NAY    Davis 

 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

Ordinance 2015-02 will only include the Deputy Public Works Director. 

 

 

1
ST 

READ 
a.) Ordinance 2015-03. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Pre-Zone Property Located on the South Side of U.S.  

                                                                              Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard / George Kalasountas 

 

b.) Ordinance 2015-04. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Annex Property Contiguous to the Corporate Limits of the City of  

                                                                              Daphne / Property Located on the South Side of U.S. Highway 90 at  

                                                                              Renaissance Boulevard / George Kalasountas 

 

c.) Ordinance 2015-05. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Grant Management for the Tiawasee Creek Coastal Impact Assistance  

                                                                              Program (CIAP) and National Fish and Wildlife Foundation (NFWF)  

                                                                              Grant Tiawasee Creek Restoration 

 

d.) Ordinance 2015-06. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Appropriating Funds for Reconstruction of Flumes, Ditches & Inlets  

                                                                              along County Road 13 

 

e.) Ordinance 2015-07. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriating Funds for Piedmont Circle Drainage Repairs 

 

f.) Ordinance 2015-08. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriating Funds for Rolling Hills Drive (South) Grade, Drain, Base  

                                                                             & Pave (Project #04-2014-RE06) 

 

g.) Ordinance 2015-09. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .An Ordinance To Transition The Position Of Treasurer To The Finance  

                                                                             Director  

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2015-05. 

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Rudicell  Nay    LeJeune   Aye 

Lake   Aye    Davis   Aye 

Fry   Aye    Conaway  Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

MOTION FAILED 

 

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 14



JANUARY 20, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
1

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2015-09.  

Seconded by Councilman Fry.     

 

ROLL CALL VOTE   

Rudicell  Nay    LeJeune  Aye 

Lake   Aye    Davis   Aye 

Fry   Aye    Conaway  Aye 

Scott   Aye 

MOTION FAILED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-60.  Seconded by Councilman 

Lejeune. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 
9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

Councilman Scott- appreciated the school folks coming tonight.  He said that the Daphne High School parking 

lot has been repaved.  

 

Councilman LeJeune- commended Daphne High School for the graduation rate.  His daughter will graduate 

next year, and has two others in Daphne schools.  He is happy and proud to be a part of the Daphne school 

system. 

 

Councilman Davis- apologized to the neighbors to the east for not telling them that the ordinances would not be 

voted on tonight, but will be next week.  He would like the Malbis Lane folks to come into the City of Daphne.  

He said the city is going to grow whether they want to or not.  Traffic is not going to get better or worse.  He 

announced that February 24
th

 is a Summit meeting at Daphne High School regarding property tax. 

 

Councilman Lake- thanked the departments that helped with the Martin Luther King Celebration.  The Mayor 

did a fantastic job on his welcoming address.  He appreciates the citizens coming out from Malbis.  He 

mentioned that he has been appointed to the Transportation Transit Committee which develops policy for 

Congress. 

 

Councilman Fry – thanked citizens for coming out.  It is important to hear resident’s concerns.  The vote will 

be February 2
nd

.  He asked them to remember that the owner has to come back to the Planning Commission for 

site preview.  The city will have growth and traffic problems, and congestion in other areas.  That is why they 

need to push the MPO for the Highway 13 interchange.  There is no easy solution.  He is looking forward to 

working with Mr. LeJeune looking at the proposals for Recreation.  He congratulated Daphne High School for 

the graduation rate.  He welcomed back the City Clerk, and asked folks to keep Michele Hanson in their 

prayers. 

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 15



JANUARY 20, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
2

 

 

Mayor Haygood – said that the MLK parade went will from City Hall to the Civic Center.  The Dogwood Girls  

pageant was this past weekend.  They do a wonderful job representing the community.  He is excited about 

Daphne High School’s progress.  He talked with Dr. Foster regarding a program with the broadcast of the 

council meetings. 

 

Council President Conaway – is proud of all Daphne schools. She said that council will take in the citizen’s 

concerns. 

 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8:45 

P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                  Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________ _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,    Tommie Conaway,     

City Clerk      Council President 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 16



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 17



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 18



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 19



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 20



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 21



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 22



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 23



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 24



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 25



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 26



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 27



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 28



ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, January 20, 2015 

City Hall Executive Conference Room 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

5:30 P.M. 

 

Councilman Ron Scott, Chairman 

Councilman Randy Fry 

Councilman Pat Rudicell 

Councilman Robin LeJeune 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

 

II. APPROVE MINUTES / December 10, 2014 

 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

No one spoke. 

IV. ORDINANCE REVIEW/DISCUSSION 

a.)   Council Rules of Procedure / Ordinance 2014-43 

1.)  Procedure for Appointing Councilmembers to Committees 

 

After discussion the committee agreed on the following motion 

 

MOTION  BY Councilman Fry that Ordinance 2014-43 be amended to reflect that the full 

council serve on the following committees: 

 

                  a.)  Buildings & Property Committee 

                  b.)  Public Works Committee 

                  c.)  Finance Committee 

                  d.)  Public Safety Committee 

                  e.)  Code Enforcement/Ordinance Committee 

 

and be included on the February 2, 2015 council meeting agenda. 

 

Seconded by Councilman LeJeune.  

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 29



ORDINANCE COMMITTEE                                      JANUARY 20, 2015 Page 2 

 

 

 

b.) Authorizing the Mayor to Enter Into Certain Contracts 

 

After discussion the committee made the following motion: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry that the proposed ordinance authorizing the Mayor to enter 

into contracts not to exceed $1,500 be on the February 2, 2015 council meeting agenda.  

Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

V. OTHER BUSINESS 

The committee discussed the reappointment to the Municipal Judge, Michael Hoyt and the City 

Prosecutor, James Scroggins, and recommend that these be placed on the February 2, 2015 

council meeting agenda. 

  

VI. ANY OTHER BUSINESS DEEMED NECESSARY 

 

VII. NEXT MEETING /  February 16, 2015 

 

VIII. ADJOURN 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 30



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 31



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 32



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 33



DAPHNE MUNICIPAL COURT
1502 HIGHWAY 98
DAPHNE, ALABAMA 36526
(251) 621-2824
(251)621-3192 FAX

HONORABLE MICHAEL J. HOYT, JUDGE LEAH FORT, COURT ADMINISTRATOR
NICOLE WING, MAGISTRATE

January 27, 2015

Hon. Tommie Conaway
Council President
Daphne City Council
Daphne City Hall
Post Office Box 400
Daphne, Alabama 36526

Hon. Pat Rudicell, District 2

Hon. John L. Lake. District 3

Hon. Randy Fry, District 4

Hon. Ron Scott, District 5

Hon. Robin LeJeune, District 6

Hon. Joe Davis, III, District 7

RE: Recommendation for City Prosecutor

Dear Council President Conaway and Members of the City Council:

Please accept this letter as my enthusiastic recommendation for the reappointment of
James Maurice Scroggins as City Prosecutor for the City of Daphne.

Very truly yours,

Municipal Judge

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 34



 
 

CITY OF DAPHNE  

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT AGENDA 

JANUARY 8, 2015 - 6:00 P.M.  

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 6:00 p.m. 

 

2. CALL OF ROLL – Present W. Robison, L. Cooke, B. Mayhand, P. Durant, F. 
Lamb 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Approved 

  

 October 2, 2014   

  

4. OLD BUSINESS 

 

5. NEW BUSINESS - Approved 

 

Appeal #2014-10 C. Anne Smith 

 
A request for a Variance to the Daphne Land Use and 

Development Ordinance has been filed with the City of 

Daphne Board of Zoning Adjustment. The Variance, if 

approved, would establish the lot area as fourteen 

thousand, one hundred and eighty nine square feet, in lieu 

of the required fifteen thousand square feet. The property 

is Lot 15 & 16, Block 6, Dryer Subdivision, which is zoned 

R-2, Medium Density, Single Family Residential.  

 
6. ADJOURNMENT – 6:08 p.m. 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 35



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

JANUARY 26, 2015 

6:00 P.M.  

 

                                        Page 1 of 2 

 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

There being a quorum present the chairman called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT – Toni Fassbender; Denis Kearney, III; Pokey Miller; Doug Bailey; John Cox; 

Jeffrey Ramsland, Dan Romanchuk. 

 

Also present –  Rebecca Hayes, Recording Secretary; Councilman Joe Davis, Council Liaison;  Mayor 

Haygood; Hieko Einfeld, Executive Director for the Eastern Shore Chamber of Commerce. 

 

2. TREASURERS REPORT  

Dan explained the discrepancy from last month’s treasurers report. 

 

MOTION BY Doug Bailey to approve the Treasurers Report for November, 2015 with a balance of 

369,916.39 plus receivables of $19,743.26.  Seconded by John Cox. 

                                                MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES / November 24, 2014 

 

MOTION BY Jeffrey Ramsland to approve the November 24, 2014 meeting minutes as written.  

Seconded by Doug Bailey. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

4.  NEW BUSINESS   

Opportunities / Joe Davis 

 

Councilman Davis referred members to an article in the Alabama League of Municipalities Journal on 

Economic Development for municipalities.  He said he would get the results of the survey Adrienne Jones took 

for the Comprehensive Plan.  He mentioned the impact of things they are doing and things they want to do that 

would enhance the city and attract business: 

 

 Right turn lanes for exit 38 onto Highway 181 

 The Highway 13 interchange 

 Retention from D’Olive Creek 

 

He said the city wants to make the short list of businesses looking in the area and they need to show what 

Daphne has to offer.  He also mentioned how important the Air Show is in making contacts and letting 

businesses know what Daphne has to offer. 

 

The members agreed with Councilman Davis and supports the Mayor attending the Air Show every year to 

continue to give Daphne a presence, and let businesses know we are interested in having their business come to 

the City of Daphne. 

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 36



CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING  

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL  

JANUARY 26, 2015 

6:00 P.M.  

 

                                        Page 2 of 2 

 

 

5.   NEXT MEETING        

The next meeting will be February 23, 2015 

 

 

6.    UPDATE BY MAYOR HAYGOOD ON PROPERTY 

 

MOTION BY Jeffrey Ramsland to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss the purchase of real 

property.  Seconded by Denis Kearney. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

The board adjourned into Executive Session at 6:35 p.m. 

 

 

 

Submitted by:      Certification of Presiding Officer: 

 

 

______________________________   ____________________________ 

Rebecca Hayes, Secretary    Toni Fassbender, Chairman 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 37



Month Wells Fargo #1 Wells Fargo #2 Compass Total

October Report (10/24)

Balance 9/30 $189,122.58 $174,038.91

Deposit $12,185.34

Total $189,122.58 $174,038.91 $12,185.34 $375,346.83

November Report (11/24)

Balance 10/31 $189,127.40

Credit Troy State $14,775.00

Balance 10/31 $189,127.40 $159,263.91 $9,332.73 $357,724.04

January Report (1/26/15)

Balance 11/1 $189,127.40 $159,263.91

Interest $2.95

11/20 Withdraw WF $189,130.35 $159,263.91

11/20 Deposit $348,394.26

Total in Compass $369,912.33

Less Maintenance Fee $18.00

Balance 12/1/14 $369,894.33

Interest $51.07

Checks -$26.45

Bank Costs -$2.56

Balance in Compass 12/15/14 $369,916.39

Receivable CHK 38-2485 $19,743.26

Daphne Industrial Development Board

1/26/2015

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 38



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 39



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 40



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 41



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 42



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 43



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 44



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 45



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 46



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 47



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 48



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 49



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 50



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 51



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 52



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 53



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 54



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 55



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 56



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 57



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 58



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 59



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 60



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 61



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 62



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 63



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 64



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-03  

 

    

Ordinance to Pre-Zone Property Located  

On the South Side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard 

George Kalasountas 

 

 

 
 WHEREAS, George Kalasountas as the owner of certain real property located within the 

unincorporated area of Baldwin County, Alabama, has requested that said property be pre-zoned from 

RSF-1, Single Family Residential District, Baldwin County District 15 to B-2, General Business; R-7(T), 

Townhouse and R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential District, City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, said real property is on the south side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance 

Boulevard, and more particularly described as follows:  

 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY TO BE REZONED TO B-2: 
 

COMMENCING AT A CAPPED REBAR FOUND ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
MALBIS LANE (50 FOOT RIGHT-OF-WAY), SAID POINT BEING SITUATED NORTH 

00°03'47" WEST, 1459.33 FEET AND NORTH 83°26'27" WEST, 1091.70 FEET FROM 

THE PURPORTED SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 
2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN NORTH 02°29'02" WEST, 410.61 

FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 36°55'32" WEST, 282.98 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 
89°45'52" WEST, 101.89 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°51'27" WEST, 605.05 FEET; 

THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°36'45" WEST, 202.10 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°39'51" 

WEST, 210.15 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°37'12" WEST, 226.55 FEET; THENCE 
RUN NORTH 00°36'00" EAST, 407.87 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE 

PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 00°36'00" EAST RUN 
300.13 FEET TO POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY 

NUMBER 90 (80 FOOT RIGHT-OF-WAY); THENCE ALONG THE SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-

WAY LINE, RUN NORTH 88°55'49" EAST, 841.46 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°01'56" 
EAST, 124.50 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING THE SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, 

ALONG A NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1233.21 FEET, 
AN ARC LENGTH OF 259.25 FEET, CHORD BEARS SOUTH 06°36'27" EAST AND 

MEASURES 258.77 FEET; THENCE ALONG A NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 1233.21 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 47.35 FEET, CHORD BEARS 

SOUTH 27°59'32" EAST AND MEASURES 47.35 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 88°55'49" 

WEST, 1021.12 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 6.76 ACRES, 
MORE OR LESS. 

BEING LOT 1, A REPLAT OF PROPERTY FOR GEORGE KALASOUNTAS #2, AS PER PLAT 
RECORDED ON SLIDE NO. 2520-F OF THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN 

COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY TO BE REZONED TO R-7(T): 

 
COMMENCING AT A CAPPED REBAR FOUND ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

MALBIS LANE (50 FOOT RIGHT-OF-WAY), SAID POINT BEING SITUATED NORTH 
00°03'47" WEST, 1459.33 FEET AND NORTH 83°26'27" WEST, 1091.70 FEET FROM 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 65



THE PURPORTED SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 

2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN NORTH 02°29'02" WEST, 410.61 
FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 36°55'32" WEST, 282.98 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 

89°45'52" WEST, 101.89 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°51'27" WEST, 181.07 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PROPERTY HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE 

CONTINUING SOUTH 89°51'27" WEST, RUN 423.98 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 

89°36'45" WEST, 202.10 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°39'51" WEST, 210.15 FEET; 
THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°37'12" WEST, 226.55 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 00°36'00" 

EAST, 407.87 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 88°55'49" EAST, 1021.12 FEET; THENCE 
ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTWARDLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 1233.21 FEET, 

AN ARC LENGTH OF 68.74 FEET, CHORD BEARS SOUTH 30°41'20" EAST AND 
MEASURES 68.73 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°23'29" EAST, 362.66 FEET TO THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10.06 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.  BEING LOT 2, 

A REPLAT OF PROPERTY FOR GEORGE KALASOUNTAS #2, AS PER PLAT RECORDED 
ON SLIDE NO. 2520-F OF THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, 

ALABAMA. 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY TO BE REZONED TO R-1: 

 
COMMENCING AT A CAPPED REBAR FOUND ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

MALBIS LANE (50 FOOT RIGHT-OF-WAY), SAID POINT BEING SITUATED NORTH 
00°03'47" WEST, 1459.33 FEET AND NORTH 83°26'27" WEST, 1091.70 FEET FROM 

THE PURPORTED SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 
2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN NORTH 02°29'02" WEST, 410.61 

FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 36°55'32" WEST, 282.98 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 

89°45'52" WEST, 101.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PROPERTY 
HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°51'27" WEST, 181.07 FEET; THENCE 

RUN NORTH 00°23'29" WEST 362.66 FEET; THENCE ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE 
NORTHEASTWARDLY HAVING A RADIUS OF 1233.21 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 290.16 

FEET, CHORD BEARS SOUTH 39°01'35" EAST AND MEASURES 289.49 FEET; THENCE 

RUN SOUTH 00°31'35" EAST, 137.32 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND 
CONTAINING 1.00 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.  BEING LOT 3, A REPLAT OF PROPERTY 

FOR GEORGE KALASOUNTAS #2, AS PER PLAT RECORDED ON SLIDE NO. 2520-F OF 
THE PROBATE COURT RECORDS OF BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 

WHEREAS, at the Special Called City of Daphne Planning Commission meeting on 

October 30, 2014, the Commission considered said request and three motions were made and 

failed which resulted in a unfavorable recommendation regarding said property pre-zoning 

request; and, 

 

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed pre-zoning has been provided to the public as 

required by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City 

Hall, a public hearing was held before the City Council on January 20, 2015; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

consideration of the notes of the Planning Commission, deemed that said application for pre-

zoning of the above described real property is proper and in the best interest of the health, safety 

and welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama;  and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 66



 

SECTION I: ZONING 

 

That above described real property is hereby pre-zoned from RSF-1, Single Family 

Residential District, Baldwin County District 15 to B-2, General Business; R-7(T), Townhouse 

District and R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential District, City of Daphne and that the 

zoning ordinance and zoning map be amended to reflect the said zoning change. 
 

SECTION II: REPEALER.  

 

 All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, 

in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.  
 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, 

sentence, or part thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or 

impair the remainder of said Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each 

provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and part thereof separately and independently of each 

other. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE AND EXPIRATION DATE.  
 

 This Ordinance, and in particular the pre-zoning shall take effect after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law.  Pursuant 

to Code of Alabama (1975) Section 11-52-85, the zoning of the property, shall become effective 

upon the date the territory is annexed into the corporate limits, if any portion of the territory is 

not annexed into the corporate limits within 180 days of the initiation of annexation proceedings 

as provided by law then this pre-zoning shall be null and void. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS           day of                    , 2015. 

                                           

 

 

 

  _________________________________ 

 Dane Haygood,  

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 ______________________________ 

Rebecca Hayes, 

City Clerk 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 67



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 68



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 69



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 70



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE 2015-04  

 

 

ORDINANCE TO ANNEX PROPERTY CONTIGUOUS 

TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

Property Located on the South Side of U.S. Highway 90 at Renaissance Boulevard 

George Kalasountas 

 

 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 23

rd
  day of September, 2014, being the owner of all real property hereinafter 

described, did file with the City Clerk a petition asking that the said tracts or parcels of land be annexed 

into and become part of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition did contain the signatures of all owners of the described territory and a 

map of said property showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and 

 

WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on December 

15, 2014 concerning the petition for annexation; and 

 

WHEREAS, said petition has been presented to the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne at a 

Special Called meeting on October 30, 2014 and a favorable recommendation with appropriate zoning as 

determined by the City Council was approved for the City Council to consider said request for annexation 

and said property; and 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION ONE:   ANNEXATION 

 

 The City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama finds that and declares as the legislative body of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama that it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City of Daphne, Alabama 

and the citizens of the affected area, to bring the territory described in Section Two of this Ordinance into 

the City of Daphne, Alabama, and it did further determine that all legal requirements for annexing said 

real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-24, et seq., Code of Alabama, 

1975; effective on publication as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended. 

 

 

 SECTION TWO:  DESCRIPTION OF TERRITORY 

 

 The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are hereby altered or 

rearranged so as to include all the territory hereto before encompassed by the corporate limits of the City 

of Daphne, Alabama and in addition thereto the following described property, to-wit: 

 
DESCRIPTION: 
 

COMMENCING AT A CAPPED REBAR FOUND ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
MALBIS LANE (50 FOOT RIGHT-OF-WAY), SAID POINT BEING SITUATED NORTH 

00°03'47" WEST, 1459.33 FEET AND NORTH 83°26'27" WEST, 1091.70 FEET FROM  

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 71



ORDINANCE 2015-   ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY HIGHWAY 90 & RENAISSANCE BLVD.        PAGE   2 

 
 

THE PURPORTED SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 

2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA; THENCE RUN NORTH 02°29'02" WEST, 410.61 

FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 36°55'32" WEST, 282.98 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 
89°45'52" WEST, 101.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE PROPERTY 

HEREIN DESCRIBED; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°51'27" WEST, 605.05 FEET; THENCE 
RUN SOUTH 89°36'45" WEST, 202.10 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°39'51" WEST, 

210.15 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°37'12" WEST, 226.55 FEET; THENCE RUN 

NORTH 00°36'00" EAST, 708.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY NUMBER 90 (80 FOOT RIGHT-OF-WAY); THENCE ALONG THE 

SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, RUN NORTH 88°55'49" EAST, 841.46 FEET; 
THENCE RUN NORTH 89°01'56" EAST, 124.50 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING THE SAID 

SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, ALONG A NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING 

A RADIUS OF 1233.21 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 259.25 FEET, CHORD BEARS SOUTH 
06°36'27" EAST AND MEASURES 258.77 FEET; THENCE ALONG A NON-TANGENT 

CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1233.21 FEET, AN ARC LENGTH OF 
406.25 FEET, CHORD BEARS SOUTH 36°19'46" EAST AND MEASURES 404.41 FEET; 

THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°31'35" EAST, 137.32 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING 
AND CONTAINING 17.82 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

  

SECTION THREE:   MAP OF PROPERTY 

 

The property hereby annexed into the City of Daphne, Alabama is set forth and described in Exhibit 

“A” and attached hereto a map of the property (Exhibit “B”) showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the municipality of the City of Daphne and made a part of this ordinance. 

 

SECTION FOUR: PUBLICATION 

 

 This Ordinance shall be published as required by Section 11-42-21 Code of Alabama 1975, as 

amended, and the property described herein shall be annexed into the corporate limits of the City of 

Daphne, and a certified copy of the same shall be filed with the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin 

County, Alabama as required by Section 11-42-21, Code of Alabama 1975, as amended. 

 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS THE ________ DAY OF ________________, 2015. 

 

 

 

  _________________________________ 

 Dane Haygood,  

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 ______________________________ 

Rebecca Hayes, 

City Clerk 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 72



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 73



February 2 2015 Council Meeting 74



ORDINANCE 2015-05 

 

 

GRANT MANAGEMENT FOR THE TIAWASEE CREEK COASTAL IMPACT 

ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (CIAP) AND NATIONAL FISH AND WILDLIFE 

FOUNDATION (NFWF) GRANT TIAWASEE CREEK RESTORATION 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 

September 23, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council 

has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a 

part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City with large grants ($500,000.00+) has always sought out grant 

management assistance to ensure compliance with all federal, state and local grant 

requirements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City’s attorney and finance department recommends that a grant manager 

be hired to manage the Tiawasee Creek Restoration project; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby amended to include a   General Fund 

appropriation in the amount of $25,000.00 for the procurement of a grant manger to assist 

with its CIAP-NFWF grant project and the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute all 

agreements required for the completion of these projects. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS 20
TH

 DAY OF JANUARY, 2015. 
 

 
             

_________________________________ 

                                                                        Dane Haygood, Mayor 

           

 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 75



ORDINANCE 2015-06 

 

APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR RECONSTRUCTION OF FLUMES, DITCHES&INLETS ALONG 

COUNTY ROAD 13 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 

September 23, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council has determined that certain 

appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5 inches of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, the flumes, ditches and inlets along CR13 sustained severe damage; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the repair of the Reconstruction of Flumes, Ditches & 

Inlets along County Road 13 and has determined that the bid as presented is reasonable (Construction- $313,356 + CE&I 

& Material Testing -$59,538 = $372,894 Total project cost); and 

 

WHEREAS, FEMA grant monies are available for 75% of the project cost ($279,670) for the Reconstruction of Flumes, 

Ditches & Inlets along County Road 13; and 

 

WHEREAS, the State of Alabama EMA monies are available for 12.5% of the project cost ($46,612) for the repair of the 

Reconstruction of Flumes, Ditches & Inlets along County Road 13; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems this project is key to the recovery efforts associated with this rain 

event and the repair of this public infrastructure is necessary to preserve the health, safety, and convenience of the 

public. 

2. This project is a qualifying FEMA and State EMA PA, Cat D project at a guaranteed 87.5 percent reimbursement 

($326,282). 

3. Ordinance 2014-24 appropriated $14,250 for engineering on this project. 

4. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby amended to include an appropriation in the amount of $32,362 from the 

General Fund for the repair of the Reconstruction of Flumes, Ditches & Inlets along County Road 13 cost not 

reimbursed by FEMA and the State EMA. 
5. The Mayor is hereby authorized to make application with FEMA and the State of Alabama EMA for the 

reimbursement of such funds and to sign and execute all documents associated with the described projects. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS ____ 

DAY OF __________, 2015. 

 

 

 

                

 Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

Attest:        

 

 

 

      

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 76



ORDINANCE 2015-07 

 

Appropriating Funds for Piedmont Circle Drainage Repairs 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 

September 23, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council has determined 

that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 

budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5" of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, Piedmont Circle Drainage sustained severe damage; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the repair of the Piedmont Circle 

Drainage Repairs and has determined that the bid as presented is reasonable (Construction- $57,671 + 

CE&I & Material Testing -$27,076 = $84,747 Total project cost); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City provided some in-kind services, NRCS monies are available for 75% of a portion 

of the Engineering Fees($10,252) , and FEMA (75%) and EMA (12.5%) grant monies are available for 

the remainder of the project cost ($62,193) for the Piedmont Circle Drainage Repairs. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems this project is key to the recovery efforts 

associated with this rain event and the repair of this public infrastructure is necessary to preserve 

the health, safety, and convenience of the public. 

2. This project is a qualifying partial NRCS and FEMA and State EMA PA, Cat D project at a 

guaranteed 87.5 percent reimbursement ($72,445). 

3. Ordinance #2014-24 appropriated $7,875 for engineering on this project. 

4. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby amended to include an appropriation in the amount of 

$4,427 from the General Fund for the repair of the Piedmont Circle Drainage Repairs cost not 

reimbursed by FEMA and the State EMA. 
5. The Mayor is hereby authorized to make application with FEMA and the State of Alabama EMA 

for the reimbursement of such funds and to sign and execute all documents associated with the 

described projects. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 2015. 

 

 

 

                

  Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

Attest:        

 

 

 

      

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 77



ORDINANCE 2015-08 

 

Appropriating Funds for Rolling Hills Drive (South) Grade, Drain, Base & Pave  

(Project #04-2014-RE06) 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-44 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget on 

September 23, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2015 budget, the City Council has determined 

that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2015 

budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5" of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, Rolling Hills Drive (South) sustained severe damage; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the repair of the Rolling Hills 

Drive(South) Grade, Drain, Base & Pave project and has determined that the bid as presented is 

reasonable (Construction- $578,798 + CE&I & Material Testing -$112,843 = $691,641 Total project 

cost); and 

 

WHEREAS, FEMA and State of Alabama EMA grant monies are available for Category D (Drainage) of 

the project cost ($192,705) for the Rolling Hills Drive(South) Grade, Drain, Base & Pave  project; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 
1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems this project is key to the recovery efforts associated with 

this rain event and the repair of this public infrastructure is necessary to preserve the health, safety, and 

convenience of the public. 

2. This project is a qualifying FEMA and State EMA PA, for the Category D portion of the project 

($192,705). 

3. Ordinance #2014-24 appropriated $48,438 for engineering on this project. 

4. Fiscal Year 2015 Budget is hereby amended to include an appropriation in the amount of $450,498 

from the General Fund for the repair of the Rolling Hills Drive (South) Grade, Drain, Base & Pave  

project cost not reimbursed by FEMA and the State EMA. 
5. The Mayor is hereby authorized to make application with FEMA and the State of Alabama EMA for the 

reimbursement of such funds and to sign and execute all documents associated with the described projects. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS ____ DAY OF __________, 2015. 

 

 

 

                

Attest:       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

 

 

      

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 78



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO.  2015-09 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO TRANSITION THE POSITION OF TREASURER TO THE 

FINANCE DIRECTOR 

 

WHEREAS, there exist certain overlapping duties and functions between the Office of 

the Treasurer and the Finance Director; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the position of Finance Director is currently vacant; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Office of the Treasurer is currently filled by the senior accountant who 

has performed admirably to service the needs of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the current Treasurer has agreed to voluntarily resign from the position of 

Treasurer to be effective upon the commencement date of the new Finance Director; and 

 

WHEREAS, the position of Treasurer has heretofore been uncompensated; and 

 

WHEREAS, City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration believes the 

duties and liabilities of the Office of the Treasurer demand that the position of Treasurer be 

compensated; said funding will enable the Treasurer of the City to confidently serve the City;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

A. Treasurer’s Salary 

 The position of Treasurer of the City of Daphne as shall be compensated in the amount of 

$12,000 per year for serving as Treasurer.  Treasurer compensation shall be paid in the same 

manner and method of any other City employee as determined by the policies and procedures of 

the City of Daphne.   

 

B.  Current Treasurer 

 The current appointed Treasurer has tendered her resignation as Treasurer of the City of 

Daphne effective upon the start date of the Finance Director.  Outgoing Treasurer shall remain as 

the Senior Accountant with the City of Daphne and shall be awarded a one-step pay raise 

effective as of the date of the authorization of this Ordinance.   

 

C. Proposed Treasurer 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 79



 The City Council hereby authorizes the Mayor to fill the Finance Director position at a 

salary level not to exceed Grade 36 Step 16.  The City Council hereby appoints the new Finance 

Director of the City of Daphne as Treasurer effective upon the start date of employment as 

Finance Director.  The Finance Director shall serve as Treasurer as long as the Financial Director 

is employed with the City of Daphne as the Finance Director. 

 

 SECTION II: REPEALER  

 

  That any Ordinance, or parts thereof, heretofore adopted by the City Council of Daphne, 

Alabama, which is in conflict with this Ordinance be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict. 

 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any 

reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall 

be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions hereof.    

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE. 

        This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by 

the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS 20
TH

 DAY OF JANUARY, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

                

Attest:       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

 

 

      

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 80



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-10 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER  

INTO CERTAIN CONTRACTS 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Alabama law, the City Council of the City of Daphne has the 

statutory authority over all expenditures of City funds; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne has the sole authority to enter into 

contracts for the benefit of the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to delegate part of its authority to the Mayor of the 

City of Daphne to facilitate the day-to-day operations of the City and that authorizing the Mayor 

with the authority to enter into certain contracts not exceeding certain dollar amounts is in the 

best interest of the City;  

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION 1: AUTHORITY 

 

 The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute contracts that bind the City of Daphne, and do 

not exceed FIFTEEN THOUSAND and 00/100 DOLLARS ($15,000), as long as the purpose of 

the contract has been funded or budgeted by the City Council.   

 The Mayor is only authorized to fill employment positions that have been funded in the 

annual budget by the City Council.   

 The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign and execute all documents associated with the 

purchase of the capital equipment as long as the cost for such type of item is found in the annual 

budget or otherwise funded by the City Council. 

 It is also understood that the Mayor always has been and continues to be, authorized to 

execute contracts that have been competitively bid and awarded by the City Council. 

 This authority is subject to all laws and regulations of the State of Alabama including but 

not limited to the competitive bid law.   

 

 SECTION 2: REPEALER 

 

 Those other ordinances, parts of other ordinances, or resolutions conflicting with the 

provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed, insofar as they conflict. 

 
 SECTION 3: SEVERABILITY 

 
 That the provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any section, subsection, clause, 

provision or part of this Ordinance shall be held to be invalid or unconstitutional in a court of 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 81



ORDINANCE  2015-10 CONTRACT ORDINANCE PAGE 2 

competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect or impair the remainder of this Ordinance, 

it being the legislative intent to ordain each provision, section, paragraph, sentence and part 

thereof separately and independently of each other.  

 

 SECTION 4: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect and shall be in force after approval by the City Council 

of the City of Daphne, Alabama and upon publication as provided by law. 

 

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE _____ DAY OF __________________, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       DANE HAYGOOD 

       MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 82



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO.  2015-11 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 2014-43  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration 

believes that certain revisions to the Rules of Procedure for the City Council of Daphne 

are necessary for the proper administration of said Ordinance; and 

 

WHEREAS, said revisions to Ordinance 2014-43 will enable the City to more 

easily enforce the Ordinance in order to benefit the health, safety, and welfare of its 

citizens;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 That Section XIV(B) of Ordinance 2014-43, be and is hereby deleted in its 

entirety and is replaced as follows: 

 

Each Council Member shall be a member of the following committees: Public 

Safety, Public Works, Finance, Code Enforcement/Ordinance, and Buildings and 

Property.  Each of these committees shall consist of the seven members of the 

City Council.  Should a member leave the office of City Councilperson, they will 

also forfeit membership on the aforementioned committees.  Once said vacancy is 

filled, the replacement will become a member of each of the aforesaid committees 

upon taking the office of City Councilperson. 

 

 SECTION II: REPEALER  

 

  That any Ordinance, or parts thereof, heretofore adopted by the City Council of 

Daphne, Alabama, which is in conflict with this Ordinance be and  is hereby repealed to 

the extent of such conflict. 

    
 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is 

for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction,  
 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 83



ORDINANCE 2015-11             AMEND COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE                   PAGE   2 

 

such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such 

holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof.    

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE. 

        This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS ______ DAY OF ________________, 2015. 

 

 

  TOMMIE CONAWAY, 

                                                    CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

                                                   

DANE HAYGOOD,  

MAYOR                                        
            

    

ATTEST: 

 

REBECCA A. HAYES,  

CITY CLERK,  

 

February 2 2015 Council Meeting 84


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL SHEET
	Council Minutes
	Public Safety Minutes
	Ordinance Committee Minutes
	Reappoint Municipal Judge Michael Hoyt
	Prosecutor Contract
	Recommendation Letter Scroggins 1 27 15
	BZA - January meeting report
	IDB Minutes
	Backup to IDB Minutes
	Planing Commission Minutes 12-2014
	Public Hearing Set Date Info
	ABC License - EL MEXICANO OF DAPHNE EMAIL
	2015-03 - ORD - PREZONE - KALASOUNTAS
	Backup to 2015-03 - ORD - KALASOUNTAS - BACKUP
	2015-04 - ORD - ANNEXATION - KALASOUNTAS
	2015-04 - Backup
	2015-05 - ORD - 2014 CIAP NFWF Grant Managment
	2015-06 - ORD - FEMA-Flumes-DitchesInlets CR13-April Rains 2014
	2015-07 - ORD - FEMA-Piedmont Circle Drainage Repairs-April Rains 2014
	2015-08 - ORD - FEMA-Rolling Hills GradeDrainBasePave-April Rains 2014
	2015-09 - ORD - Treasurer salary Ordinance
	2015-10 - ORD - Authorize Mayor to Enter Into Contracts
	2015-11 -  ORD - Amend Rules of Procedure Ordinance



